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Procurement Department 
Jennifer Horner, CPPB, Supervisor of Procurement 

410-809-6044 • Jennifer.Horner@hcps.org  

ADDENDUM #1 
 

Bid #26-JHP-007 
 

Modular Classroom Buildings for Various HCPS Locations 
 

TO:  ALL BIDDERS 

FROM:  Jennifer Horner, CPPB, Procurement Agent 

DATE:  November 14, 2025 

 

This Addendum is issued in response to prospective bidder’s inquiries and to add/clarify verbiage in the 
Bid.  
 
1. DELETE: Bid Announcement 
 
  ADD: Bid Announcement – Revised, see attached. 
 
2. CLARIFICATION: Refer to page 7, Instruction to Bidders, Section 13.5 – Bid Security. If the total bid 

is over $100,000, Performance and Payment Bonds will be required. 
 
3. ADD: BOND REQUIREMENTS 

Performance Bond and Payment Bond – The Contractor shall furnish a Performance Bond and 

Labor and Materials Payment Bond covering the faithful performance of the Contract and the 

payment of all obligations arising there under and complying with the requirements of Maryland 

law.  Both bonds shall be in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract amount 

and shall name the “Board of Education of Harford County” as obligee.  The Performance Bond 

and the Payment Bond shall be submitted in the format displayed in the attached 

documents.  No other bond forms will be accepted.  Firms issuing bonds must be licensed to 

write bonds in the State of Maryland.  The Contractor shall pay premiums for required bonds.  

Obtaining of bonds by Contractor shall be a condition precedent to effectuation of the Contract 

between the Owner and Contractor.  If additional work is authorized, the amount of the bonds 

shall be increased to cover the value of the increased Contract sum.  All bonds shall conform to 

the requirements of the Maryland Little Miller Act. 

Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering 

payment of obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of 

the bonds or shall permit a copy to be made. 

4. ADD: Performance and Payment Bond documents, see attached.  
 

mailto:Jennifer.Horner@hcps.org
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5. QUESTION: Need confirmation if prevailing wage is required. I saw the note that “prevailing wage 
rates are applicable to this project” must be listed on the bid announcement if they were required but I 
do not see that anywhere.  

 
ANSWER: Prevailing wages do not apply. 
 

6. QUESTION: Need clarification on what is required for the fire alarm. Just pull strings in the modular 
classroom? Or does it need to be integrated to school alarm? 

 
ANSWER: Modulars do not get integrated into the main school fire alarm system.  Modulars are 
integrated into each other and other existing modulars if applicable. Contractor to provide and 
install system compatible equipment listed in the Single Classroom Portable Specifications, page 
49. 
 

7. QUESTION: Need clarification on warranty length required. Page 12 states a 1-year warranty from 
acceptance. Pages 32 and 46 state 2-year warranty.  

 
ANSWER: Refer to page 20, General Terms and Conditions, Section 46.0 Order of Precedence. 

 
8.  QUESTION: Is Hardi Panel the exterior that you are looking for? Just wanted to clarify as all I saw is 

“panel siding”.  
 

ANSWER: Sheathing to be to code, Hardi Panel is acceptable but not required. 
 

9.  QUESTION: Is there a specific spot within the building that you want the closet, coat hooks, and tack 
boards? 

 
ANSWER: The closet is in a corner.  The coat hooks are usually near the ramp side door.  White 
board and tack board locations can be verified  in the shop drawing submittal. 
 

10.  QUESTION: Do you want all six buildings setup under one contract, or would you prefer them be 
separate for each school?  

 
ANSWER: One contract, for all locations. 
 

11.  QUESTION: Can you please confirm the MBE requirements listed do not apply to this project? 
 

ANSWER: There are no MBE requirements. 
 

12.  QUESTION: Can you please confirm the bonds listed do not apply to this project? 
 

ANSWER: Refer to Items #1-4 of this Addendum. 
 
13.  QUESTION: Is there a specific roller shade you are expecting? 
 

ANSWER: HCPS design standards allow the following manufacturers: 
 

A. Interior Manually Operated Roller Shades: 

• 1. Draper, Inc; Clutch Operated FlexShade: www.draperinc.com/#sle. 

• 2. Lutron Electronics Co., Inc; Contract Roller Manual Roller Shades: www.lutron.com/#sle. 

• 3. MechoShade Systems LLC; Mecho/7 System: www.mechoshade.com/#sle. 
 
14.  QUESTION: What version of IBC is required? 
 

ANSWER: Whatever version the local AHJ is utilizing at the time of bid. 
 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.draperinc.com%2F%23sle&data=05%7C02%7Cjennifer.horner%40hcps.org%7C95f20daad8294b52376408de207487c4%7Cc1f6ac536b774db594724f104eeac96a%7C0%7C0%7C638983882043076924%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QaTYZAtvQoOprEqlv1WupmrIHG7uS%2FBbY4k%2FUWWjpmg%3D&reserved=0
http://www.lutron.com/#sle
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mechoshade.com%2F%23sle&data=05%7C02%7Cjennifer.horner%40hcps.org%7C95f20daad8294b52376408de207487c4%7Cc1f6ac536b774db594724f104eeac96a%7C0%7C0%7C638983882043121284%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=rys32IAHKWNpAPBQ8ciDpkBP%2FdcVMaSte%2FIPm9zb51k%3D&reserved=0
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15.  QUESTION: Can you please confirm the IT accessibility program and technology-based instructional 
product requirements does not apply to this project? 

 
ANSWER: IT accessibility program and technology-based instructional product requirements do 
not apply to this project. 

 
16.  QUESTION: Can you please confirm HCPS will submitting for the permits? It is listed on the bid that 

the awarded bidder is responsible for the permits and also states that HCPS will apply for the permit. 
 

ANSWER: HCPS will submit permits on the Awarded Bidder’s behalf, to include the Awarded 
Bidder’s submissions of MD stamped engineered documents for the buildings, decks & ramps, 
and foundations. HCPS applies for permits once in receipt of the Awarded Bidder’s submission of 
required permit documentation. Awarded Bidder is responsible for providing all required 
documents for the initial permit submission, as well as any revisions resulting from AHJ permit 
comments and stipulations after their review.  
 

17.  QUESTION: Are horn strobes required by code? 
 

ANSWER: Horn strobes are required, per code. 
 

18.  QUESTION: Is the cmu blocking laid loose acceptable? 
 

ANSWER: All foundation construction, materials, and installation shall be in accordance with all 
applicable state and local codes. 

 
19.  QUESTION: Can you please confirm that sprinklers are not required. We believe MD Code required 

sprinklers in all classrooms.  
 

ANSWER: Sprinklers are not required. 
 

20.  QUESTION: Can you please confirm our Fire Alarm Scope of Work. We cannot do any of this work in 
the factory so it would be best if fire alarm was handled on site by others.  

 
ANSWER: Refer to page 49, Single Classroom Portable Specifications which outlines the 
compatible equipment requirements bidder needs to supply and install as part of their 
package.  Bidders are encouraged to visit all sites to become familiar with existing conditions. 

 
21.  QUESTION: No electrical drawings were provided.  Is the electrical portion of the project bidding 

separately?  If not, could you please provide the electrical drawings for power feed and fire alarm 
communication for each site? 

 
ANSWER: Refer to page 28, Specifications, Scope of Work, Sections 2.3 and 2.4. 
 

22.  QUESTION: If the electrical work is not part of this contract, who is responsible for permits? 
 

ANSWER: Refer to Question #16 of this Addendum. 
 
23.  QUESTION: The specifications mention that a “fire alarm panel may be required.”  Could you please 

provide specifics on the fire alarm panel to be provided (make, model #, etc.)? 
 

ANSWER: See attached photos of a fire alarm panel example. 
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24.  QUESTION: The announcement page states that no bonds are required, however, the Instructions to 
Bidders section 13.0 states that Performance and Payment bonds may be required if the contract is 
more than $100k.  Will HCPS be requesting the performance and payment bonds if the contract is 
over $100k? 

 
ANSWER: Yes, refer to Items #1-4 of this Addendum. 

 
25.  QUESTION: Is this project a Prevailing Wage scale? 
 

ANSWER: Refer to Question #5 of this Addendum. 
 
26.  QUESTION: Can the stormwater management plan be provided prior to bid to fulfill the requirement 

of regrading the sites to promote stormwater movement? 
 

ANSWER: Stormwater management is not required for this project.   
 
27.  QUESTION: When can work on site begin?  The school year ends on June 25th, allowing only 6 

weeks before the project end date of August 7th.   
 

ANSWER: This depends on the Awarded Bidder providing the required stamped engineered 
documents for HCPS to secure the building permit for the Awarded Bidder’s use.  HCPS will work 
with the Awarded Bidder and the individual site locations on the Awarded Bidder’s proposed 
workplan and schedule. 
 

28.  QUESTION: Who is responsible for taking the fence down at George D. Lisby Elementary School? 
 

ANSWER: If the Bidder requires the fence to be removed for their work, then the Bidder must 
remove the fence and return it to its original condition prior to completion and in coordination with 
HCPS. 

 
29.  QUESTION: Request for contract execution date for winning bidder 
 

ANSWER: The anticipated date of award will be the week of December 15, 2025. 
 
30.  QUESTION: Request for anticipated date of notice to proceed/mobilize to project site 
 

ANSWER: Notice to proceed generally corresponds to Awarded Bidder executing the 
contract.  Awarded Bidder may mobilize after approval of submittals, and the Awarded Bidder 
submits all engineered drawings required for HCPS to submit for and receive the building permit. 
 

31.  QUESTION: Request for fire alarm panel specifications and equipment list. 
 

ANSWER: Refer to page 49, Single Classroom Portable Specifications. Bidder to verify existing 
systems and provide compatible equipment. 
 

32.  QUESTION: Is fire alarm work required or can bidder exclude? 
 

ANSWER: Qualified bids submitted with exclusions will be rejected. 
 

33.  QUESTION: Which project locations require a fire alarm system 
 

ANSWER: Bidder is to make themselves familiar with the existing sites and conditions.  Bidder is 
to verify existing systems and provide compatible equipment.  
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34.  QUESTION: Will the owner/HCPS tie-in to existing fire alarm systems? 
 

ANSWER: The intent is for the HCPS on-call electrician to perform all electrical tie-ins between 
the Awarded Bidder’s new fire alarm equipment and the existing systems, as applicable, in 
accordance with the Single Classroom Portable Specifications listed on page 49. 
 

35.  QUESTION: Request for asphalt walkway length at each project location 
ANSWER: Bidders building placement in accordance with all applicable codes determines 
walkway length. 

 
36.  QUESTION:  Request for site plan with contours 
 

ANSWER: Bidders are responsible for site visitation and confirmation measurements and existing 
conditions. 
 

37.  QUESTION: Request for finished floor elevation 
 

ANSWER: Bidders are responsible for building placement in accordance with all applicable 
codes. 
 

38.  QUESTION: Request for soil bearing capacity at each project location 
 

ANSWER: Bidders are responsible for engineered foundation drawings. 
 

39.  QUESTION: Will the portable classroom siding be constructed of Smart Panel? 
 

ANSWER: Exterior siding to be constructed per code. 
 
40.  QUESTION: Is site construction fence required, if yes please specify. 
 

ANSWER: Bidder is advised to protect bidder’s own work. 
 

41.  QUESTION: Will a 3tn HVAC unit be acceptable as opposed to the 3.5tn in the spec 
 

ANSWER: No. 
 
42.  QUESTION: Are deviations to the spec acceptable? If yes will they be on a case by case basis? 
 

ANSWER: Deviations from specifications will be considered a non-responsive bid. 
 
43.  QUESTION: Is the winner bidder responsible for inspections outside awarded scope of work? 
 

ANSWER: Awarded Bidder is to comply with all permit requirements. 
 

44.  QUESTION: Please verify distance from existing building to modular classrooms at each location. 
 

ANSWER: Bidders are responsible for building placement in accordance with all applicable 
codes. 
 

45.  QUESTION: Could the bid be extended a week due to the upcoming holiday to give contractors time 
to respond to the addenda questions? 

 
ANSWER: Due to tight timelines, we cannot extend the bid timeline. 

 
 



Page 6 of 6 
 

I hereby acknowledge receipt of Addendum #1 dated November 14, 2025 to Bid #26-JHP-007 Modular 
Classroom Buildings for Various HCPS Locations. 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Company      Name (Print or Type) 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________ 
Authorized Signature    Date 
 
 
 
Note: Bidder shall sign and submit Addendum with submission.  The same person signing the 
Addendum shall sign the Bid Form.  Failure to submit the Addendum may deem your bid as non-
responsive. 

 



HARFORD COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
102 South Hickory Avenue 

Bel Air, Maryland 21014 
 

BID ANNOUNCEMENT - REVISED 
 

BID TITLE: Modular Classroom Buildings for Various HCPS Locations 

BID NUMBER: 26-JHP-007 

BID OPENING DATE AND TIME: November 25, 2025, 2:30 pm local time 

BID OPENING /  
BID EMAIL SUBMITTAL ADDRESS: 

Bid Opening will be online via Teams at the following: 
 

Microsoft Teams Need help? 
Join the meeting now 
Meeting ID: 287 955 469 165 1 
Passcode: JQ9DT7ev 
 

Dial in by phone 
+1 240-600-1475,,342282303# United States, Bethesda 
Find a local number 
Phone conference ID: 342 282 303# 
 

Submit your bid via electronically to bids@hcps.org. 

PROCUREMENT AGENT: Jennifer Horner 
410-809-6044 
Jennifer.Horner@hcps.org 

QUESTIONS DUE DATE AND 
TIME: 

Questions must be emailed to Jennifer.Horner@hcps.org no later than 
2:30 pm on November 13, 2025. 

ADDENDUM ISSUED: No later than November 17, 2025. 

PRE-CONFERENCE: Not Required. 

BONDING REQUIRED: Performance and Payment Bonds are Required. 

MBE DOCUMENTS: MBE Documents Are Not Required. 

TIMELY DELIVERY OF BID 
DOCUMENTS: 

Bids must be received in the Procurement e-mail box, bids@hcps.org, on 
or before the bid opening day and time. (PDF format Only) 

 It is the Bidder(s) responsibility to verify that the Bid has been received 
at bids@hcps.org, prior to the Bid Opening.  ‘Read Receipts’ are not 
sufficient.  Bidders may contact the Buyer listed within the solicitation, 
by email or phone, to confirm receipt of bids. 

INCLEMENT WEATHER: If Harford County Public Schools Administrative Offices are closed on the day 
a proposal is DUE, that proposal will be due at the same time the next day the 
Administrative Offices are open. 

Bidders may obtain the Solicitation Documents by downloading the information at our website: 
www.hcps.org/departments/BusinessServices/purchasing.aspx.  Bidders shall continue to check the HCPS website for 
possible addenda to the bid(s) prior to the bid opening date. 
 

The Contract Award Report, will be posted on the HCPS webpage at 
https://www.hcps.org/departments/BusinessServices/procurement.aspx (Solicitation Results) after evaluation and 
approval by the Board of Education of Harford County, if required. 

0BLATE BIDS WILL BE REJECTED AND RETURNED UNOPENED 
 

Harford County Public Schools Nondiscrimination Statement 
The Board of Education of Harford County is committed to providing an inclusive and welcoming environment for all students, employees, and members of the school community. 
In accordance with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Board of Education of 
Harford County prohibits discrimination based on sex, race, color, national origin, religion, or any other protected characteristic in any program or activity it operates. 
 
Inquiries or concerns about your rights related to Title IX can be directed to our Title IX Coordinator, Dr. Eric Davis, at 102 South Hickory Ave, Bel Air, MD 21014, 410-588-5202, 
or TitleIX@hcps.org. Inquiries related to your rights under Title VI or Title VII can be directed to our Coordinator of Investigations, Dr. Renee McGlothlin, at 410-809-6087 or 
Renee.McGlothlin@hcps.org. Harford County Public Schools’ non-discrimination policy can be accessed here: NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY: (hcps.org) and found on the 
HCPS website under Board of Education Policies and Procedures. Harford County Public Schools’ non-discrimination statement can be accessed here: NON-DISCRIMINATION 
STATEMENT: (hcps.org) and found on HCPS’ homepage.    

https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDFiMTRmMmMtM2E3MS00ZDEzLThiMzUtM2YzNWFkNWU5MDdj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22c1f6ac53-6b77-4db5-9472-4f104eeac96a%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2259ae3641-2c0a-4a89-89a7-cb32afb3141a%22%7d
tel:+12406001475,,342282303
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/6f6a04b2-0529-4500-9e61-dc925c394de5?id=342282303
mailto:bids@hcps.org
mailto:Jennifer.Horner@hcps.org
mailto:bids@hcps.org
mailto:bids@hcps.org
http://www.hcps.org/departments/BusinessServices/purchasing.aspx
https://www.hcps.org/departments/BusinessServices/procurement.aspx
mailto:TitleIX@hcps.org
mailto:Renee.McGlothlin@hcps.org
https://www.hcps.org/webfiles/WebFilesHandler.ashx?id=4152
https://www.hcps.org/nondiscrimination.aspx
https://www.hcps.org/nondiscrimination.aspx
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